
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to
request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA
Beloit City Plan Commission

Wednesday, February 20, 2013 at 7:00 PM
The Forum

Beloit City Hall, First Floor
100 State Street, Beloit

1. Call to Order and Roll Call

2. Approval of the Minutes of the February 6, 2013 Meeting

3. Appointment of a Plan Commission member to the Greater Beloit Economic Development
Corporation

4. Certified Survey Map – Beloit Memorial Hospital - 1650 Lee Lane
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 1650 Lee
Lane in the City of Beloit

5. Certified Survey Map – Terrapin Acres Corp - South Petter Road
Review and consideration of a one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located on South
Petter Road south of County Trunk J in the Town of Turtle

6. Connections: City Center Plan
Review and consideration of the Connections: City Center Plan

7. Zoning Text and Map Amendment – Wellhead Protection Ordinance
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to create Section
5-800 of the Zoning Ordinance to be known as the Wellhead Protection Ordinance, and to create a
Map Amendment which would establish a Wellhead Protection Overlay District

8. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items

9. Adjournment

If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Gail Riddle in the Planning Office at 364-6700 no
later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting.

Notice Mailed: February 15, 2013 Approved: Julie Christensen, Community
Development Director



Page 1 of 3

MINUTES
BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Wednesday, February 6, 2013
The Forum, Beloit City Hall

100 State Street, Beloit

1. Call to Order and Roll Call
Chairperson Ramsden called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Gail Riddle called the
roll. Present were Commissioners Jacobsen, Kelley, Smith, Moore, Faragher and
Kincaid. Commissioner Seifarth was absent.

2. Approval of the Minutes of the January 9, 2013 Meeting
Commissioner Faragher moved and Commissioner Jacobsen seconded approval of
the January 9, 2013 minutes. The minutes were approved (6-0).

3. Conditional Use Permit – Alcohol Sales – 1623 Park Avenue
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow indoor
alcohol sales in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at
1623 Park Avenue.

Community Development Director Julie Christensen summarized the Staff Report
and Staff Recommendation.

Commissioner Moore asked about the residency issue and if the request would be
allowed go any further if the applicant was not a resident of the state of Wisconsin.
Ms. Christensen answered that the applicant could establish residency if she lived in
the city for 90 days prior to applying for the liquor license. Ms. Christensen
commented that the applicant could also acquire a local agent to apply for the liquor
license.

Chairperson Ramsden opened the Public Hearing.

The applicant’s daughter was present and stated that her mother lives in Beloit four
days a week, Thursday through Sunday, but lives in Illinois Monday through
Wednesday. She commented that her mother applied for a liquor license because
customers requested it and that they would be selling alcohol from 1:00 PM until 9:00
PM. She stated that they would have sufficient equipment and monitoring to prevent
the underage sale of alcohol and would be asking for state ID’s at all times.

Patricia MaJeed, 1515 Park Avenue, owner of Clippers & Curls, was present and
stated that they have been there for 25 years. Ms. MaJeed stated that the area is
congested as it is and that the Merrill Neighborhood is a fragile neighborhood and
does not need alcohol sales in the area.



Page 2 of 3

Vanessa Graham, recent owner of the Christian Ark Children’s Daycare at 1613 Park
Avenue, was present. Ms. Graham commented that she does not want liquor sales
there because her hours are 6:00 AM until 9:00 PM and will be extended to 11:30 PM
in the near future. Ms. Graham added that because she has a daycare center and
because the area is so congested she is concerned that people will not recognize the
law. She stated that she feels it is best to not have liquor sales in the area at all for the
safety of the children and the community.

Victor Murph, 1015 Washburn Avenue, a resident in the area, stated that he and
others in the community are concerned about the traffic in the Merrill Community
being very fragile at this time. Mr. Murph said that he commends the business
owners for having a grocery store there and having a great entrepreneurial spirit. Mr.
Murph stated that maybe the community can handle a liquor license at some point,
but today is not the day.

Rory Owens, 1681 Wisconsin Avenue, Chairperson of the Merrill Revitalization
Group, was present to represent the group. Mr. Owens said that they are requesting
that the Commission deny the request for alcohol sales in this area because it is not in
the best interest of the neighborhood.

Chairperson Ramsden clarified that most people support the business but not the sale
of alcohol. Mr. Owens commented that would be correct.

Chairperson Ramsden closed the public hearing.

Commissioner Faragher commented that he understands that the community supports
the business but not the alcohol sales and that he personally could not support the sale
of alcohol in the community either.

Commissioner Faragher made a motion to recommend denial of the requested
Conditional Use Permit and the motion was seconded by Commissioner Moore. The
motion to recommend denial of the Conditional Use Permit carried (6-0).

4. Comprehensive Plan Amendment – 1500 and 1505 Gateway Boulevard
Public hearing, review and consideration of an amendment to the Future Land Use
Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan from Mixed Residential to Business Park for
the properties located at 1500 and 1505 Gateway Boulevard.

Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation.

Chairperson Ramsden opened and closed the public hearing.

Commissioner Jacobsen moved and Commissioner Kelley seconded approval of the
Resolution recommending approval of the requested amendments to the
Comprehensive Plan. The motion carried (6-0).



Page 3 of 3

5. Zoning Map Amendment – 2208 N. Lee Lane – Lee Lane Park
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change
the zoning of the property located at 2208 N. Lee Lane from R-1A, Single Family
Residential, to PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District.

Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation.

Chairperson Ramsden opened and closed the public hearing.

Commissioner Kelly moved and Commissioner Faragher seconded a motion to
recommend approval of the requested Zoning Map Amendment for 2208 N. Lee
Lane. The motion carried (6-0).

6. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items.
The annexation of 1035 and 1041 Udell drive was approved. The Comprehensive
Plan Amendments for 501 Prospect Street and the school district properties will be
considered by the City Council at their next meeting. The Comprehensive Plan
Amendment for the former Cub Foods property has been withdrawn.

7. Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 PM.

Respectfully submitted,
Gail Riddle



February 20 Staff Report, CSM, 1650 Lee Lane

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: February 20, 2013 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CSM-2013-02

Applicant: R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. Owner: Beloit Memorial Hospital Location: 1650 Lee Lane

Existing Zoning: C-1, Office District Existing Land Use: Vacant & Office Total Area: 16.19 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor Subdivision and a 2-Lot Certified Survey
Map (CSM) for the property located at 1650 Lee Lane. According to Section 12.05(1)(c) of the Subdivision Ordinance, the Plan
Commission shall recommend to the City Council approval, conditional approval, or rejection of any minor subdivision of land
within the City that involves the dedication of land to the public.

Key Issues:
 The intent of the proposed CSM is to create a buildable parcel (Lot 1) for a proposed cancer center that will be

operated by Beloit Memorial Hospital and UW Health. Planning staff is currently reviewing site plans for this project.
 Proposed Lot 2 includes the existing clinic building and parking lot and several acres of vacant land.
 Proposed Lot 1 is 5.288 acres in area and includes 496.84 feet of frontage on Lee Lane, 333.65 feet of frontage on

Milwaukee Road, and a public sidewalk easement near the stoplight that is 8 feet wide and approximately 114 feet
long.

 Proposed Lot 2 is 10.898 acres in area and includes 639.23 feet of frontage on Lee Lane.
 Both proposed lots meet the minimum development standards for properties zoned C-1, Office District.
 The proposed CSM must be reviewed by the City Council because of the perpetual public sidewalk easement.
 The City Assessor’s Office has reviewed the proposed CSM and has noted that proposed Lot 1 will be addressed as

1670 Lee Lane, with proposed Lot 2 retaining an address of 1650 Lee Lane.
 AT&T has reviewed the proposed CSM and has noted the presence of buried cable in the right-of-way adjacent to

proposed Lot 1. The City’s other Review Agents did not submit any comments.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Community Commercial uses, which includes larger office uses serving the entire
community and nearby communities. This proposed land division is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. Consideration of
this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the
property located at 1650 Lee Lane, subject to the following conditions:

1. Lot 1 shall be addressed as 1670 Lee Lane and Lot 2 shall be addressed as 1650 Lee Lane.
2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2013.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: CSM, Application, and Proposed Site Plan.



February 20 Staff Report, CSM, 1650 Lee Lane



February 20 Staff Report, CSM, 1650 Lee Lane



February 20 Staff Report, CSM, 1650 Lee Lane



February 20 Staff Report, CSM, 1650 Lee Lane



February 20 Staff Report, CSM, 1650 Lee Lane



February 20 Staff Report, CSM, South Petter  Road (TOT).docx 

 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 

Meeting Date: February 20, 2013 

 

Agenda Item: 5 File Number: CSM-2013-01 

Applicant: Combs & Associates, Inc. 

 

Owner: Terrapin Acres Corp Location: South Petter Road, Town of 
Turtle 

Existing Zoning: R-R, Rural 
Residential District (Town Zoning) 

Existing Land Use: Agricultural Uses CSM Area: 1.4 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
In accordance with Section 12.05 of the Subdivision Ordinance, the applicant has submitted an Application for Review of a Minor 
Subdivision and a one-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located on South Petter Road in the Town of Turtle within 
the City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction. The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the property involved in this 
application. An aerial photograph for the property was not provided because it extends beyond the area of the City’s aerial 
photographs.   
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The current owner would like to subdivide the land in order to sell it to a neighbor for development in the future. 
 Proposed Lot 1 is approximately 1.4 acres in area and is located east of Interstate 90. The nearest intersection is South 

County Road J and South Petter Road. 
 Proposed Lot 1 includes approximately 220 feet of frontage on South Petter Road. A 70-foot road reservation is shown on 

the proposed CSM that would allow the extension of South Petter Road. A 50-foot Drainage Easement is also shown on 
the proposed CSM. It crosses the western portion of Lot 1.  

 The City’s Review Agents have not submitted any comments, concerns, or recommendations. 
 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The Comprehensive Plan recommends agricultural uses and discourages non-agricultural uses for the subject property. 
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #4. 

 

Sustainability: 

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the 
property located at South Petter Road in the Town of Turtle, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and shall provide the Planning and Building 
Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM within one year of Plan Commission approval. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 

 

Attachments: Location Map, Application, CSM, and Resolution. 



February 20 Staff Report, CSM, South Petter  Road (TOT).docx 



February 20 Staff Report, CSM, South Petter  Road (TOT).docx 
 



February 20 Staff Report, CSM, South Petter  Road (TOT).docx 



February 20 Staff Report, CSM, South Petter  Road (TOT).docx 

 

 

 



February 20 Staff Report, CSM, South Petter  Road (TOT).docx 

 
 

 



February 20 Staff Report, CSM, South Petter  Road (TOT).docx 

 

 

 



February 20 Staff Report, CSM, South Petter  Road (TOT).docx 

RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A ONE-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT SOUTH PETTER ROAD 

IN THE TOWN OF TURTLE 

 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City 

of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of 

the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within 

the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at South 

Petter Road in the Town of Turtle is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the proposed  

one-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

 

Part of Lot 4 of a Certified Survey Map as recorded in Volume 27, Pages 229 thru 

231 of Certified Survey Maps of Rock County, Wisconsin as DOC. NO. 1674351, 

Located in the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 3, T. 1N., R13E. of the 4
th

 P.M., Town of 

Turtle, Rock County, Wisconsin.  Containing 1.4 acres, more or less. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Plan Commission of the City 

of Beloit does hereby approve the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 

South Petter Road in the Town of Turtle, subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and shall 

provide the Planning and Building Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM 

within one year of Plan Commission approval. 

 

Adopted this 20
th

 day of February, 2013. 

 

 

   

                                                                        Charles Ramsden, Plan Commission Chairman 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 ______ 

Julie Christensen, Community Development Director 

 

 

 

 



February 20 Staff Report, Connections City Center Plan

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: February 20, 2013 Agenda Item: 6 File Number: RPB-2013-05

Applicant: City of Beloit Owner: N/A Location: City-wide

Request Overview/Background Information:
The Connections: City Center Plan is a plan initiated by Beloit 2020 in an effort to guide the physical development and
improvement of bike and pedestrian paths in the “Confluence Corridor” located between the City of Beloit and City of South
Beloit. The Confluence Corridor includes roughly 930-acres of land between both cities. In the City of Beloit the boundaries of
the Confluence Corridor include lands east of the Rock River, west of State Highway-51, south of East Grand Avenue to the
Stateline border into the City of South Beloit.

Key Issues:
 The plan is advisory and is intended to provide guidance to decision makers when considering any proposed

developments, public improvements, or transportation proposals within the Confluence Corridor.
 As mentioned above, the Confluence Corridor includes 930-acres of land that is east of the Rock River, west of State

Highway-51, south of East Grand Avenue. Most of the corridor area within the City of South Beloit is within the
floodplain, which will affect future development in this portion of the corridor.

 The public and local government officials from Beloit and South Beloit were able to participate in the development of
the plan by attending workshops and meetings throughout 2011 and 2012. During the process, participants were able
to provide creative ideas on how the corridor could be redeveloped and the steps necessary to carry out the plan.
Recommendations regarding the corridor’s streetscape, transportation, and redevelopment were the results of the
meetings and workshops.

 The majority of the recommendations are aimed toward the City of South Beloit and how its portion of the corridor can
be improved upon to match that of the City of Beloit.

 The essential recommendation as it relates to the City of Beloit is the eastern extension of Shirland Avenue. The plan
states that the eastern extension of Shirland Avenue will create sites with potential for commercial or recreational
development (page 20).

 The plan also encourages the restoration of public open space along the Stateline border in both cities.
 For the City of South Beloit, the plan includes an extensive list of recommendations for improving its portion of the

corridor. Some of the recommendations include: the creation of a land use plan for establishing appropriate uses in the
corridor: the creation of design guidelines for improving the appearance and aesthetics of the area; infill development;
increasing employment opportunities in the area; remediation of brownfields; realignment of its streets to promote and
increase pedestrian traffic; and connection of its bicycle network with that of the City of Beloit. Actions on these
recommendations within the corridor will enhance the area and the region.

 In addition, the plan suggests that the Wheeler Bridge in South Beloit should be rehabilitated and included in a bike
and pedestrian route.

 The plan provides implementation steps for its recommendations to ensure that redevelopment and revitalization for
the corridor comes into fruition (pages 31 - 35). It recommends that both cities cooperate and coordinate their efforts to
improve the corridor to provide consistency, and suggest the creation of Design Guidelines among other
implementation tools.

 The plan was reviewed and approved by the City of South Beloit on January 22, 2013.
 The Plan Commission’s role is to review the plan in order to provide an advisory recommendation to the City Council.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #4 and #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – The implementation of this plan and its incorporation into other city policies
may reduce vehicle trips by ensuring and offering multiple forms of transportation to residents.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A



February 20 Staff Report, Connections City Center Plan

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – The incorporation and
implementation of this plan will provide affordable and efficient transportation alternatives to present and future
residents.

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the Connections: City Center Plan.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Connections: City Center Plan



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: February 20, 2013 Agenda Item: 7 File Number: ZTA-2013-01
ZMA-2013-02

Request Overview/Background Information:
In accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) requirements, City of Beloit staff has drafted an
Ordinance to create Section 5-800 of the Zoning Ordinance, Article V, Chapter 19 of the Code of General Ordinances of
the City of Beloit, to be known as the Wellhead Protection Ordinance.

Key Issues:
 The purpose of the Wellhead Protection Ordinance is to create land use regulations and restrictions that will

protect the City’s water supply from sources of contamination. The DNR directed the City to adopt a Wellhead
Protection Ordinance within 18 months in a letter dated July 20, 2011. City staff requested, and the DNR
approved, an extension until March 14, 2013.

 Essentially, the Wellhead Protection Ordinance creates a Wellhead Protection Overlay District that encompasses
the groundwater recharge area around each of the City’s wells. As the name implies, the overlay district is a
second zoning district classification, as affected properties will retain their underlying zoning district classification
(e.g. residential, commercial, industrial, etc.). The more restrictive regulations will apply.

 As shown on the attached maps, the proposed Wellhead Protection Overlay Districts will cover a significant
proportion of the City. According to staff’s calculations, 3,023 properties will be affected. These properties are
owned by 2,305 different owners, who have been individually notified.

 The Wellhead Protection Ordinance establishes permitted, conditional, and prohibited uses within the Wellhead
Protection Districts. Permitted uses include residential (on City sewer), agricultural, open space, and most
commercial, institutional, and industrial uses (on City sewer). The vast majority of properties in the proposed
overlay districts are residential on City sewer, and these properties will not be affected.

 Conditional uses include those with the potential to cause contamination, including metal plating & working,
commercial uses with septic systems, cemeteries, chemical manufacturers, dry cleaners, auto repair shops,
businesses with above-ground fuel & chemical tanks, and others.

 Prohibited uses include those with a greater potential to cause contamination, including businesses with
underground fuel & chemical tanks, radioactive waste facilities, coal storage, landfills, railroad yards, rendering
plants & slaughterhouses, and others.

 Existing facilities that are listed as a conditional or prohibited use are grandfathered and are eligible to apply for a
Conditional Use Permit to repair, rebuild, or expand the facilities, subject to very specific requirements and
conditions.

 The proposed Wellhead Protection Ordinance consists of a Zoning Text Amendment in accordance with Section
2-200 and a Zoning Map Amendment in accordance with Section 2-300 of the Zoning Ordinance.

 The attached Public Notice was sent to 2,305 affected property owners. As of this writing, Planning staff has
received 29 inquiries regarding the proposed ordinance. The vast majority of callers are seeking additional
information, and only one has expressed outright opposition to the proposed Ordinance.

Consistency with Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – The

proposed Ordinance will regulate the use & storage of chemicals and other potential contaminants.
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – The proposed Ordinance is

intended to protect the City’s water supply.
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A



Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Ordinance to create Section 5-800 of
the Zoning Ordinance, Article V, Chapter 19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, to be known as the
Wellhead Protection Ordinance.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: The City has not received any funding to implement this Ordinance. Existing staff from the
Planning Division, Water Resources Division, and City Attorney’s Office are implementing this Ordinance.

Attachments: Proposed Zoning Map(s), Proposed Wellhead Protection Ordinance, and Public Notice.
































	Call to Order and Roll Call
	Approval of the Minutes of the February 6, 2013 Meeting
	Appointment of a Plan Commission member to the Greater Beloit EDC
	Certified Survey Map - Beloit Memorial Hospital - 1650 Lee Lane
	Certified Survey Map - Terrapin Acres Corp - South Petter Road
	Connections:  City Center Plan
	Zoning Text and Map Amendment - Wellhead Protection Ordinance
	Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items
	Adjournment

